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Indiependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. As explained in Note 41 to the financial statements, the management has carried out fair valuation of
the investment in 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
issued by its associate (erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary) based on its internal assessment and best
estimate of the aggregate adjusted milestone consideration, as defined in the Put Call Option
Agreement dated 19 November 2021 and its subsequent amendments. Pending finalisation of the
terms and conditions of the milestone shares, milestone events and milestone consideration, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the fair value of the CCPS as at 31 March
2024 and about the classification, as current and non-current as at 31 March 2024. Consequently, we
were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary and its resultant
impact on the profit for the year ended 31 March 2024. We had modified our audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2023 as well pertaining to the aforesaid matter.

b. As explained in Note 26.1 to the financial statements, the Company had recorded INR 161.40 lacs as
an expense during the previous financial year and disclosed as an exceptional item. During the
previous financial year, the Company had not determined the period specific effects on comparative
information for the prior periods of the impact of misappropriation of cash collections from customers
aggregating to INR 161.40 lacs by few employees. As a result we were unable to assess the likely
impact of the non-compliance with the Ind AS 8 — Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, on the financial statements of the previous year including the comparative
information presented and disclosures thereof included in the financial statements of the previous
year. Qur audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 was modified
accordingly. Our opinion on the current year's financial statements is also modified because of the
possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current year's figures and the corresponding
figures. .

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
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provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(j) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above, we have
sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Except for the possible effects of (i) the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraphs (i) matter stated in the paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and (iii) the back-up of the books of account and
other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically
located in India on a daily basis, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in paragraph (a) of the Basis for Qualified
Opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

The matter described in the paragraph (a) of the Basis for Qualified Opinion above, and our
observation on the achievement of the objectives of the internal control criteria as explained in
our separate Report in ‘Annexure B’ in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning
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of the Company.

On the basis of the writteh representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024, 01
April 2024 and 11 April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act. :

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs and paragraph 2(A)(b) above on
reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a..

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31(c) to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 42(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Uliimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been cbnsidered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement. :

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, in respect of one of the accounting

softwares used by the Company for the maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all

relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the feature of recording audit trail (edit

log) facility was not enabled at the database level for the said accounting softwares to log any

direct data changes. Due to the limitations in the system configuration, we are unable to comment

whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with. '
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Further, the Company has used another accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which does not have the feature of recording the relevant edit logs. Consequently, we are unable
to comment on audit trail feature of the said software.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the
limit laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented
upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o

oM

Ritesh Rathi

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 069207
Date: 30 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24069207BKIALB7322
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(i) (b)

(i) (@)

(iii)

©

(d)

(e

(b)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end,
written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of
receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company granted loan to a
company and has also made investments in companies and other parties, in respect of which
the requisite information is as below. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Further, the
Company has not made any investments in firms or Limited Liability Partnerships during the
year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loan to a company as below:
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(Continued)
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans (Rs. Advances in
’ lacs) nature of loans
Aggregate amount
during the year
Subsidiary
- - 50.00 -
Balance

outstanding as at
balance sheet date
Subsidiary

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loan during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loan of Rs 50 lacs given to Genu Pathlabs Limited,
a subsidiary, the said loan along with interest was repayable on demand. The subsidiary had
repaid the loan and interest on demand made by the Company during the year. Thus, there has
been no default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent. Further, the Company
has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted failing
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loan to its related party as defined in Clause (76)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)..

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate of
loans/advances in
nature of loan

-  Repayable on
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(Continued)
All Parties Promoters Related Parties
| demand (A)
- Agreement does | - - 50.00
not specify any terms
or period of
Repayment (B)
Total (A+B) - - 50.00
Percentage of | - - 100%
loans/advances in
nature of loan to the
total loans
(@iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans given by the Company,
in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
have been complied with. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security.

W) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the
products/services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident Fund, Labour welfare fund, Income-Tax and
Professionai Tax . :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of Nature Amount Period to Due date Date of | Remarks,
the statute of the (Rs. in which the paymen if any
dues lakhs) amount t
relates
Employees Provide 1.65 November | 15th of the | - Unpaid
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(Continued)
Name of Nature Amount Period to Due date Date of Remarks,
the statute of the (Rs. in which the - | paymen if any
dues lakhs) amount t
relates
Provident nt Fund 2018 - | succeedin
Fund Act, September | g month
1952 2023

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

()

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if
the statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is any
lakhs) amount pending
relates
West Entry Tax | 0.89 2014-15 Additional None
Bengal Tax | Demand Commissioner
on Entry of
Goods into
Local
Arrears Act,
2012

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any ioans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates as
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(Continued)
defined under the Act.
® According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

() (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

©

report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

Pursuant to notification No. NF-25013/2/2023 issued by the National Financial Reporting
Authority dated 26 June 2023, with respect to Statutory Auditor's responsibilities in relation to
fraud in a company, we have filed the report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government on 27 October 2023, in respect of the fraud identified by the
management in the financial year 2022-23 and disclosed in Note 26.1 to the financial statements

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit. i

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have more than
one CIC.

Except for the impact of the qualification, which is not quantifiable, the Company has not incurred
cash losses in the current financial year. After considering the effect of the quantified
Page 10 of 14



BS R &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(xviii)

(xix)

(09

qualifications in the relevant audit report, the Company had incurred cash losses of Rs 882.88
lacs in the previous year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Ritesh Rathi
Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 069207
Date: 30 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24069207BKIALB7322
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sastasundar
Healthbuddy Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as of 31 March 2024, based on the interna! financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”), and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company'’s
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating effectively as of 31
March 2024.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 of the Company, and the material weakness has
affected our opinion on the financial statements of the Company, and we have issued a qualified opinion
on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements as of 31 March 2024

The Company’s internal control system for management review of estimates in relation to valuation of
investments was not operating effectively which resulted in non-compliance with Ind AS.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financia! statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Qs>

Ritesh Rathi

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 069207
Date: 30 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24069207BKIALB7322
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
Rs. in lacs
Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
{(a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 4,561.90 3,926.82
(b) Capital work in progress 3A 1.92 3422
(c) intangible assets 3B 4.23 6.14
{d) Financial assets
{i) Investments 4 29,164.07 14,159.82
(i1} Other financial assets 5 3,839.67 2,609.97
(e) Current tax assets {net) 6 1.81 267.83
{f} Other non-current assets 7 0.07 206.32
Total non-current assets 37,573.67 21,211.12
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 11,538.11 18,042.29
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 26,796.21 “  13,820.29
{ii} Trade receivables 10 3,452.01 3,178.73
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,358.36 2,860.24
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 12 1,527.86 16,339.71
{v) Other financial assets 5 3,503.86 7,663.81
(c) Other current assets 7 3,066.52 3,803.17
52,242.93 65,708.24
{d) Assets held for sale 3E - 249.39
Total current assets 52,242.93 65,957.63
Total Assets 89,816.60 87,168.75 |
Equity and Liabilities
Equity .
(a) Equity share capital 13 2,370.35 2,370.35
(b) Other equity 14 77,821.10 70,929.95
Total equity 80,191.45 73,300.30
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 31a 715.87 1,012.63
(b) Provisions 15 300.61 270.50
{c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 27 2,942.34 3,422.61
Total non-current liabilities 3,958.82 4,705.74
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 3la 199.14 155.67
{ii} Trade Payables 16
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 990.28 1,524.83
small enterprises
{b)Total outstanding dues of creditor other than 1,890.43 2,955.62
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 2,117.30 1,400.15
(b) Other current liabilities 18 192.07 702.03
(c) Provisions 15 20.33 19.14
{d) Current tax liabilities (net) 256.78 2,405.27
Total current liabilities 5,666.33 9,162.71
Total liabilities 9,625.15 13,868.45
Total Equity and Liabilities 89,816.60 87,168.75
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For B SR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
|CAl Firm Registration No: 101?48W/W—100022 [CIN: U15411WB2011PLC160195] .
o
‘ G 2 1cshne v L4—
Ritesh Rathi B. L. Mittal Ravi Kant Sharma
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 069207 DIN : 00365809 DIN : 00364066
. VN
D Aren B ' b ‘&"M
Dinkar Bagaria A%?s‘hek Mighra
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
v, 1C8I Membership No. A40011
Place : Kolkata Place : Kolkata §
Date : May 30, 2024 Date : May 30, 2024




Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Ritesh Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 069207

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2024

B. L. Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00365809

Dicber Bg”

Dinkar Bagaria

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kolkata

yxvgwg_ﬁ“;fmm’m?‘gw

Date : May 30, 2024 {557

Rs. in lacs
. Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
I.  {Revenue from operations 19 1,33,503.11 1,02,623.76
Il. |Other income 20 5,450.18 2,201.98
ill. |Total income (I+II) 1,38,953.29 1,04,825.74
IV. |Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 36.50 96.50
Purchases of stock-in-trade 21 1,16,754.96 1,02,853.24
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 22 6,319.54 (7,137.56)
Employee benefits expense 23 3,020.70 3,155.91
Finance costs 24 139.14 109.89
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 849.47 713.37
Other expenses 25 6,765.46 6,496.10
Total expense (IV) 1,33,885.77 1,06,287.45
V. |Profit /(Loss) before Tax and Exceptional Items ( II-IV ) 5,067.52 {1,461.71)
VL. |Exceptional ltems 26 - (161.40)
VII. |Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V+ V1) 5,067.52 {(1,623.11)
VIIl. |Tax expense
(a) Current tax 27 1,088.80 -
(b) Deferred tax 27 (487.04) 52.44
(c) iIncome Tax Earlier Years (2,405.27) -
IX. |Profit/(Loss) for the year (Vii-VIII) 6,871.03 (1,675.55)
X |Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit & loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit obligations 26.89 (34.50)
(b) Income tax effect on above (6.77) -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income tax 20.12 (34.50)
XI  [Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 6,891.15 {(1,710.05)
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Nominal value Rs. 10 per share) 28 28.99 (7.07)
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
ICAl Firm Registration IXO.’ 101248W/W-100022 [CIN: U15411WB2011PLC160195]
-
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Ravi Kant Sharma
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN : 00364066

A({‘ ishek lshra

Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A40011




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Operating Activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 5,067.52 (1,623.11)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional items - 161.40
Gain on fair valuation of Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (1,836.05) (212.88),
Profit on sale of current investments (1,012.07) (104.30)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 849.47 713.37
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and CWIP (6.20} 8.87
Liability no longer required written back (0.90) (0.12)
Loss allowance on Advances and receivable from trade payables 76.49 -
Loan & sundry balances written off - 5.25
Bad debts written off 9.41 -
Income distribution from alternate investment fund (275.18) -
Loss allowance on trade receivables 257.65 192.11
Gain on lease modification (61.21) -
Interest income (2,045.81) (1,883.85)
Finance costs 139.14 109.89
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,162.26 (2,633.37)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in Trade receivables (540.34) (1,589.39)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories 6,504.18 | (6,794.91)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other assets 661.96 (1,644.62)
Increase in Other financial assets (238.47) (162.27),
Increase in Provisions 58.19 69.97
Increase in trade payables (1,598.84) 2,358.71
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities {509.96) 461.85
Increase in other financial liabilities 780.42 409.68
Cash generated from/(used in} operations 6,279.40 (9,524.35)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (552.22) 367.12
Net cash genrated from/(used in) Operating Activities (a) 5,727.18 (9,157.23)
. Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress & intangible assets (1,363.79) (1,720.00)
(including capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets & capital work in 269.71 14.96
progress
Proceeds from/(investment in) bank deposits 18,021.20 5,808.94
Interest on loans and deposits 1,796.02 1,876.34
Purchase of non-current investment (11,600.00) (1,800.00)
Redemption of investments in associate 1,670.93 -
Income distribution from alternate investment fund 275.18 -
Purchase of investments (65,637.10) (31,249.64)
Proceeds from sale/redemption of investments 50,670.10 38,159.17
Loans given (50.00} -
Loan repayment received 50.00 202.15
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) Investing Activities (b) (5,897.75) 11,291.93
. Financing Activities
Interest paid other than interest on lease liability (2.78)( (0.66)
Payment of lease liabilities (328.57) (236.99)
Net cash flows used in Financing Activities (c) (331.31) {237.65)
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents {a+b+c) (501.88) 1,897.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,860.24 963.20
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 2,358.36




|Statement of Cash Flows for the the year ended March 31, 2024

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Explanation:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Elows”
Rs. In lacs
2. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11): Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks :

In Current Accounts 2,357.82 437.40
Cash on Hand 0.54 2.58
Cheques on Hand - -
Others:

Deposit with original maturity less than 3 months - 2,420.26

Total 2,358.36 2,860.24
3. Non-cash investing activities Rs. In lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Acquisition of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 3) 394.04 1,170.48

cash changes, refer note 31a.

As per our report of even date

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
LY

W
WRitesh Rathi

Partner
Membership No. 069207

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2024

4. There are no non cash changes in relation to cash flow from financing activities other than for lease liabilities. For movement of lease liabilities including non-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
[CIN: U15411WB2011PLC160195]
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B. L. Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00365809
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Ravi Kant Sharma
Managing Director & CEO
DIN : 00364066
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Dinkar Bagaria
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

A) Equity share capital (refer note 13)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares Rs. in lacs No. of shares Rs. in lacs

ﬂEquity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At the beginning of the year 2,37,03,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 2,370.35
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,37,03,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 2,370.35

B) Other equity {refer note 14) X

Rs. in lacs

Reserves and Surplus

Total other equity

Ritesh Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 069207

Place : Kolkata

Retained earnings Securities Premium
As at April 1, 2022 42,761.85 29,878.15 72,640.00
Loss for the year (1,675.55) - {1,675.55)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (34.50) - (34.50)
As at March 31, 2023 41,051.80 29,878.15 70,929.95
Profit for the year 6,871.03 - 6,871.03
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 20.12 - 20.12
As at March 31, 2024 47,942.95 29,878.15 77,821.10
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 [CIN: U15411WB2011PLC160195]
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Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00365809
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Dinkar Bagaria
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2024

Managing Director & CEQ
DIN : 00364066
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Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A40011

Date : May 30, 2024




Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (the “Company” or “SHBL") is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company
is located at Innovation Tower, Premises No. 16-315, Plot No. DH 6/32, Action Area — 1D, New Town, Rajarhat,

Kolkata.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of wholesale trading of healthcare and related FMCG
products.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division Il
of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lll).

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30" May 2024.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at Fair Value as required by the relevant Indian Accounting Standards

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (in two decimals),
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
a. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
~ An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

VVVY

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

VVVY

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.




Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
¢. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
> In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

> Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

> Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the ¢

reporting period.




Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as Unquoted Preference Shares.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. The Management decides, after
discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as

explained above.

d. Revenue Recognition

At contract inception, Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer. Revenue is recognised upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount of the transaction price that is
allocated to that performance obligation and that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer net of returns, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes).

With respect to sale of products revenue is recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation is
satisfied and the customer obtains the control of goods or services. There is no significant financing components
involved on contract with customers. Invoices are usually payable within the credit period as agreed with
respective customers.

The Company recognises revenue only when it is probable that it will collect the consideration to which it will
be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on
the historical experience of sales returns, market conditions and specific contractual terms. In these
circumstances, a refund liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognised.

The right to recover returned goods asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory less any
expected costs to recover goods. The refund liability is included in other current liabilities and the right to
recover returned goods is included in other current assets. The Company reviews its estimate of expected
returns at each reporting date and updates the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly
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Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

e. Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

f. Income Taxes

income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in ather comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
_ to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

Current tax assets and current-tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases and accounting bases of assets and
liabilities at the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the same taxable entity
or different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets

and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
For items recognised in OC! or equity, deferred / current tax is also recognised in OCI or equity.

g. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Cost of an jtem of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item

and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for it intended use, and
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if significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Assets held for sale are stated at
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell and depreciation on such assets ceases and shown
under “Assets held for sale”.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Depreciation is calculated on a Written Down Value (WDV) basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Particulars Useful Economic Life
Building ’ 60 Years

Plant & Equipment 5-15 years
Computers ' 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical Equipment 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years

The Company depreciates the cost of Property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
estimated useful lives which are as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except
Plant & Equipment which is lower than those indicated in Schedule Il i.e. 5-15 years. The management believes
that these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely

to be used.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on the technical evaluation, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rate basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use {disposed of).

h. Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
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Type of Asset Useful Life estimated by the
management
Computer Software 5 Years

i Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 “Leases” at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (“ROU”) and a lease liability at the lease commencement date
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be

exercised.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use
asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

j. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

> Raw materials and Packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

» Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis. .

> Stock-in-trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis. ===
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are combined together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the lass has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

I Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

m. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-retirement benefits
Post-retirement benefits to employee can either be through Defined Contribution Plan or Defined Benefit Plan.

Defined Contribution Plan
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Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and ES! is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme and ESI as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in
OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit

plan when the settlement occurs.
n. Financial instruments

Recognition and [nitial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Subseguent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost; Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if it meets both the conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL: i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to

nt subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equi
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The subsequent measurement of gains and losses of various categories of financial instruments are as follows:
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
offective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

(if) Equity investments at FVOCI: these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL: these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as heid- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and Losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets: The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on
its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the

transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities: The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or

loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit losses (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
E‘éce ponent is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses
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from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to
be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

p. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by div.iding the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period gttributable to
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

g. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

r. Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of trading of healthcare products. These, in the context of Ind
AS -108 on Segment Reporting are considered to constitute one single primary segment. Further, there is no
reportable secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment.

s. Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence, should be
disclosed separately to ensure that the financial information allows an understanding of the underlying
performance of the business in the year, so as to facilitate comparison with prior years (where required). Such
items are material by nature or amount to the respective year’s result and require separate disclosure in
accordance with Ind AS.
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t. Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company'’s right to receive payment is
established.

interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

u. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

v. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates,
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

2.3 Standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under-
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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SASTASUNMDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED
{Notes to financial statements as at and for ilie year ended ntarch 31,2024
4: investmentis . Rs. inlacs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
{unquoted Equity Shares {fully pald up}{At Cost}
- in wholly swned subsidiary companies
Retailer Shakt Supnly Chain Private Limited 12,219.97 1,719.98
{77,81,817 equity shares {March 31, 2023: 58,72,727) of Rs. 10 each}
Genu Path Labs Limited 4,050.60 2,850.00
{1,97,49,998 equity shares {March 31, 2023; 1,69,98,998} of Rs. 10 each)
- in subsidiary company
Happymate Foods Limited S00.00 500.00
{50,00,000 equity shares {March 31, 20232 50,00,000} of Rs.10 each)
Less: Provision for impairment of Non-Current Investiments {500.00} {560.00)
- In associote
Flipkart Health Limited {formesly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited) {Refer note 29.2} 3,630.72 3,076.71
{1,90,395 equity shares {March 31, 2023: 1,87,490) of Rs. 10 each}
Unguoted Preference Shares {at fair value through profit and loss § {Refer note 41}
Flipkart Health Limited {formerly Sastasundar Marketplace Lirnited) 2,833.22 3,461.10
{20,686 {March 31, 2023: 24,868} Banus 0.01% Non Cumulative compulsary Convertible Preference share, {"Bonus
Cers'y
Unquoted Debentures {at amortized cost }
1096 ZUWAR] GLOBAL UMITED - 5313.93
wil {March 31, 2023: 50} Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000
Jm% Zuari Investments Limited - 1,031.33
Nt {March 31, 2023; 100} Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000
Jm,zs% Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited {Maturity Date; 17 September 2024} - 710.35
Nit {ndarch 31, 2023: 47 Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000
1096 Avanse Financial Services Limited {Maturity Date: 03 October 2024) - 696.652
Nt {March 31, 2023; 67} Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000
9,755 Performance Chemiserve Limited {Maturity Date: 06 June 2026} 1,007.05 -
1,000 (Mavch 31, 2023: NIL) Units at par value of Rs, 1,00,000
llnvestments at fair value through profit & loss
Unquoted alternative investment funds
360 One Commercial Yield Fund 2,624.04 -
2,36,08,285.99 {March 31, 2023: N} Units at par value of Rs.10
JKotak private Credit Fund 2,698.07 -
26,031,626 {(March 31, 2023: NiL} Units at par value of Rs. 10,000
29,161.07 14,159.82
Aggregate book value of guoted Investment - -
Aggregate book value of unguoted investment 29,664.07 14,659.82
mgerepate amount of impairment in value of investment 500.00 500.00
{information about the fair value measurement and Company's exposure to cradit and market risks is included in Note no. 35 ang 36 respectively.
5: Other financial assets {Unsecured considered good, uniess otherwise stated) {At Amortised Cost} Rs. In LacEJ
Non-current Current
Asat March 31, | As at March 3%, As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
2023 2023
Security deposits 147.08 98,92 - 24.00
Other Bank Deposits - having original maturity of more than 12 manths 3,692.59 2,511.05 2,848.12 7.237.01
Other receivable - - 657.74 402.80
3,839.67 2,608.97 3503.86 7‘563.81
|5.1; Fixed Deposit heid as security with the Bank against Bank Guarantee limit of Rs. 30.71 lacs in March 31, 2024 {March 31,2023: Rs 34.71 lacs} issued In favour of West bengal]
State Electricity Distribution Company Limited and against Overdraft facilities taken from Bank for Re. 460 lacs In March 31, 2024 {March 31, 2023: Rs 400 facs). —
WP B e




SASTASUNDAR REALTHBUDDY IMIED
6: Current fax assets {nef} {Unsecured, considered good} Rs. In Laes|
Non-Current
As at March 31,2624 As at March 31, 2023
Advance Income Tax 1.80 267.83
1.80 267.83
T
7: Other assels Rs. in Lacs
___ Nen-current Current .
As at March 31, | * As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023
‘ 2024 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances - 204.45 - -
Advance to Employees - - 4,56 9.37
Batance with statutory/ governmeant authotities - - 1,975.43 3,115.43
Advance recoverable in cash or kind from related party {Refer note 32} - - - 3.80
Advance recoverable In cash or kind from others - - 445.79 124.40
Prepaid expenses 0.07 1.37 42,71 52.56
Right of return assets (Refer Mote 7.1 below} - - 598.03 497.51
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advance recoverable in cash or kind - - 7177 18.25
Less: Credit impaired - - 171,771 {18,235}
%}7 206,32 35066.52 . 35803.17

adjustment to cost of sales} is also recognised for the right o recover the goods from a custoraer.

* Includes Stock-in-transit of Rs. 793.59 Lacs {March 31, 2023 :Rs 765.62 Lacs]. P
During the year ended March 31, 2024, Rs 6.30 lacs {March 31, 2023: Rs 126.15 lacs} is recognised as write-down in value of inventories to net realisable val u:s;\m ,ﬁ;’@ﬁg :
/j [ ?"3 w”"""‘(’ -:.s /”:-"‘:.’\

8 : Inventories Rs. in Lacs
Asat March3f, ] As at Narch 31,
2024 2023

{valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw Materials - 35.65
Finished Goods - 3.32
Traded Goods™ 11,505.25 17,921,899
Packing Materfals 32.86 81.33
Total 11!538.11 18!642.29

7.13: A refund liability is recognised for the goods that are expected to retin {i.e. amount not included in transactions price}. A right of return asset {and corresponding




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

9 : Current investment

Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Investments at fair value through profit & loss
Quoted mutual funds

Kotak FMP Series 307 - Direct Growth
Nil (March 31, 2023: 69,99,650.028) Units at par value of Rs.10

Kotak Medium Term Fund - Direct Growth
NIL (March 31, 2023: 53,73,869.002) Units at par value of Rs.10

Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan
22,229.18 (March 31, 2023: 14,719.169) Units at par value of Rs.1,000

SBI PSU FUND
86,02,119.328 (March 31, 2023: NIL) Units at par value of Rs. 10

ICICI Prudential Nifty 50 Index Fund
47,48,243.738 (March 31, 2023: NIL) Units at par value of Rs. 100

Aditya Birla Nifty 50 Index Fund
7,63,067.455 (March 31, 2023: NIL) Units at par value of Rs. 100

Kotak Money Market - Direct growth plan
Nil {March 31, 2023: 23,507.711) Units at par value of Rs.1000

Unquoted Debentures (at amortized cost ) .
10.25% Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited (Maturity Date: 17 September 2024)
47 (March 31, 2023: Nil) Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

10% Avanse Financial Services Limited (Maturity Date: 03 October 2024)
67 (March 31, 2023: Nil) Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

Unquoted preference shares in associate {Refer note 41)

Flipkart Health Limited (formerly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited)
[62,393 (March 31, 2023: 75,005) Bonus 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsory
Convertible Preference share ("Bonus CCPS")]

1,084.57

2,634.86

10,942.89

1,734.56

784.69

767.86

8,846.78

704.89

1,107.06

669.49

899.95

10,438.90

26,796.21

13,820.29

Aggregate market value of quoted investment
Aggregate book value of quoted investment
Aggregate book value of unquoted investment

16,396.88
16,396.88
10,399.33

3,381.3%
3,381.39
10,438.90

Information about the fair value measurement and Company's exposure to credit and market risks is included in Note no. 35 and 36

respectively.
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY TRNED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

7i. Forterms and canditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 32,

16 : Trade Receivables Rs. In Lacs
Asat March 31, | AsatMarch3t,
2024 2023
(At amortised cost
Trade Receivable considered good - Secured 1,051.53 944.08
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecurad 2,400,498 2,234.65
Trade Recelvable credit impaired 453.40 23428
3,005.41 3,413.01
Less: Loss allowance {453.40} _{234.38)
Total Trada receivables 3,452.01 3178.73
Receivable from refated parties {Refer note 32} 349.310 875
Others 310291 3,169.98
Total Trade receivables 3,452.01 347873
Receivables are secured to-the extent of Security Depaosits taken from: custormers.
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2029 Rs.Intacs |
Outstanding periods from date of transaction
Particular
tess than 6 months |6 months -1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed
{i} Considered good 3,242.37 47.81 2.66 1.00 - 3,293.84
{ii) Credit impaired 83.83 25.52 49.85 9.88 - 168.17
3,326.319 73.43 52.61 10.88 - 3,463.11
Less: Credit Impaired 83.82 25.52 49.95 9.88 - 169.17
Total Undisputed {A} 3,242.37 47.91 2.65 _1.00 - 3,293.54
Disputed
(i) Considered good * 36.85 46,86 56.44 14.47 3.45 158.07
(i) Credit impaired 7920 £63.98 9318 1612 26.55 284.23
116.14 110.84 154,63 30,59 30,11 442,30
Less: Credit Impaired 79.29 63.98 98.18 16.12 25,66 284.23
Total bisputed {8} 36.85 46.86 56.44 14.47 . 385 158.07
S s ety TR
Total Trade Receivable (A48} 3,279.27 A7 “59.10 1547 345 | 345251 |
* panagement is confident of recovering the entire balance
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2003 . Rs. In Lacs
Qutstanding periods from date of transaction
Particular tess than 6 months |6 months -1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed
{i} Considered good 3,017.84 43.05 37.40 22.30 11.80 3,132.38
(i) Credit impaired 49.18 44.20 2111 3.17 12.98 138.64
3,867.02 87.25 5_§.5fl 2587 24.78 3,263.03
Less: Credit impaired 49,18 44.20 2111 3,47 12.98 130.64
Total Undisputed {A} 301784 23.05 37.40 22.30 11.80 3,132.35
TR o TR TR
Disputed
{i) Considered good 9.00 16.28 14.56 4.00 2.50 46.38
{5} Credit impaired 2847 39.11 318.05 2.56 15.45 103.64
3747 55.39 32.61 6.56 17.95 149.98
Less: Credit impaired 2847 39.31 ig.05 2,55 1545 103.64
Total Disputed (B} 9.00 16.28 14.56 £.00 250 16,34
—— S R S TR
L I R T
Total Trade Receivable (A48} 3,026.84 59.33 51.96 26.30 14.30 3,178.73
1. N trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either saverally or Jointly with any other person. «v?},, e
/ ’u




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

11 : Cash and cash equivalent

Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Balances with banks :

On current accounts 2,357.82 437.40
Cash on hand 0.54 2.58
Others:

Deposit with original maturity less than 3 months - 2,420.26

2,358.36 2,860.24
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Balances with banks :

On current accounts 2,357.82 437.40
Cash on hand 0.54 2.58
Others:

Deposit with original maturity less than 3 months - 2,420.26

2,358.36 2,860.24
12 : Other bank balances Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

1,527.86

16,339.71

1,527.86

16,339.71

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Investments (Note 4 & Note 9) 2,559.60 2,952.03
Trade receivables (Note 10) 3,452.01 3,178.73
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 2,358.36 2,860.24
Other bank balances (Note 12) 1,527.86 16,339.71
Other financial assets (Note 5) 7,343.53 10,273.78
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 17,241.36 | _#% THn . 35,604.49
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

13 : Share Capital

Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023
Authorized capital

2,40,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 2,40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,400.00 2,400.00
1,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,00,000) Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 100.00 100.00
2,500.00 2,500.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2,37,03,524 (March 31, 2023: 2,37,03,524) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,370.35 2,370.35
. 2,370.35 2,370.35

Terms / Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of
declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subj

General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of year

equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
ect to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs
At the beginning of the year 2,37,03,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 2,370.35
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,37,03,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 2,370.35
Details of shares held by the Holding Company, the Ultimate Holding Company, their Subsidiaries and Associates:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (including shares held by its nominees), Holding
Company
1,71,00,160 (March 31, 2023: 1,71,00,160) Equity Shares 1,71,00,160 1,710.02 1,71,00,160 1,710.02
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares is set below: Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (including shares held by its nominees) 1,71,00,160 72.14 1,71,00,160 72.14
Rohto Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. , Japan 35,62,064 15.03 35,62,064 15.03
Mitsubishi Corporation , Japan 30,41,300 12.83 30,41,300 12.83
Disclosure of Shareholdings of Promoters
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of shareholders % of Total No. of Shares % of Total
No. of Shares
Shares Shares
Equity Shares
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (including shares held by its nominees) 1,71,00,160 72.14 1,71,00,160 72.14

There has been no change in percentage of holding during any of the period as disclosed above,
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

14 : Other equity
Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023

A, Securities premium {(movement given below) 29,878.15 29,878.15
B. Retained earnings (movement given below) 47,942.95 41,051.80
Total - Other equity 77,821.10 70,929.95
Movement in Securities premium Rs. In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Opening Balance : 29,878.15 29,878.15
Add : Premium on fresh issue of Equity shares - -
Closing Balance 29,878.15 29,878.15
Movement in retained earnings Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,
2023
Opening Balance 41,051.80 42,761.85
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 6,871.03 {1,675.55)
Add: Other comprehensive income 20.12 (34.50)
Closing Balance 47,942.95 41,051.80

Nature and purpose of reserve:
1. Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date. Retained earnings includes re-measurement {loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that
will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the company and eligible for distribution to shareholders,

15 : Provisions

Rs. In Lacs
Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, As at March31, | AsatMarch 31,
2023 2024 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 30) 300.61 270.50 20.33 19.14
300.61 270.50
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16 : Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

- Principal amount
- Interest due on above

section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified uhder the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Trade payables
To Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note 16.1) 990.28 1,524.83
To Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1,885.93 2,948.75
Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 32} 4.50 6.87
2,880.71 4,480.45
Note 16.1:
Information in terms of section 22 of Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED) are given below: Rs. In Lacs
Asat March31, | Asat March31,
2024 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
990,28 1,524.83

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2024 Rs. In Lacs
Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particul
articular Unbilled Dues |Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i} Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 990,28 - - - 990.28
ii) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro and small enterprises 321.83 1,560.01 3.17 - 5.42 1,890.43
iii) Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues of creditor other than micre and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total trade payable 321.83 2,550.29 3.17 - 5.42 2,880.71
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on March 31, 2023 Rs. In Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particular
Unbilled Dues |Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
i) Total cutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 1,524.83 - - - 1,524.83
i) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro and small enterprises 11.12 2,932,35 - 3.85 8.30 2,955.62
iii) Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises - - - - -
iv) Disputed dues of creditor other than micro and small enterprises - - - - -
Total trade payable 11.12 4,457.18 - 3.85 8.30 4,480.45

reconciliation process.

17 : Other financial liabilities (At amortised cost)

Note 16.2: There are no disputed trade payable outstanding as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Contract Liability - Advance from customers

Rs. In Lacs
particulars Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Security deposit 1,218.01 1,042.67
Payables for purchase of capital goods 6.08 69.35
Refund liabilities 649,20 -
Payable to employees 244,01 288.13
2,117.30 1,400.15
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost Rs. In Lacs
particulars Asat March31, | Asat March 31,
2024 2023
Lease liabilities (Note 31a) 915.01 1,168.30
Trade payables {Note 16) 2,880.71 4,480.45
Other financial liabilities (Note 17} 2,117.30 1,400.15
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 5,913.02 7,048.90
18 : Other current liabilities
Rs. In Lacs
particulars Asat March31, { Asat March31,
2024 2023
Taxes and Statutory dues 141.58 122,00
Refund Liability - 541.11
50.49

192.07

Note 16.3: During the year the management has carried out reconcilition of balances of trade payables. There were no material adjustments taken in the financials statements out of such




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

19

19.
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19.2

20

21

Revenue from operation

. Rs. In Lacs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Products 1,33,503.11 1,02,358.98
Other operating revenue
Sale of Services - 264.78
1,33,503.11 1,02,623.76
Details of Sale of Products
Traded Goods
Healthcare & FMCG Products 1,33,483.99 1,02,238.56
Finished Goods
FMCG Products 19.12 120.42
1,33,503.11 1,02,358.98
Contract balances Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 3,452.01 3,178.73
Contract liabilities - Advance from Customers 50.49 38.92

1. Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to deliver Health care and FMCG products, Contract liabilities convert to revenue

within 1 year from the reporting date.

2. Reconciliation of contract price to revenue recognised:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 1,34,152.31 1,03,164.87
Refund Liabilities (649.20) (541.11)
Revenue recognised during the year 1,33,503.11 1,02,623.76
Performance obligation
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the products.
Other income
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income on:
-loans, deposits and others * 1,700.27 1,834.48
-debentures 322.70 41.86
-Income Tax Refund 13.77 1.34
-Security deposit at amortized cost 9.07 6.17
Income distribution from alternate investment fund 275.18 -
Insurance Claim 199.90 -
Profit on sale of Current investments 1,012.07 104,30
Gain on fair valuation of Investments carried at FVTPL 1,836.05 212.88
Liability no longer required written back 0.90 0.12
Gain / {loss) on lease modification 61.21 -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 6.20 -
Other miscellaneous Income 12.86 0.83
5,450.18 2,201.98
* Includes interest on loans to subsidiaries/associate (Refer Note 32)
Cost of raw material consumed & Purchases of stock-in-trade
Rs, In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a. Cost of raw material consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 35.65 6.57
Add : Purchases during the year 0.85 125,58
Less : Inventory at the end of the year (Refer Note 8) - 35.65
Cost of raw material consumed 36.50 96.50
b. Purchase of stock-in-trade (Healthcare and FMCG products) 1,16,754.96 1,02,853.24
1,16,754.96 1,02,853.24
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

22 Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade

23

24

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade 17,921.99 11,196.81
Finished goods 3.32 2.05
17,925.31 11,198.86
Less: Inventories at the end of the year (Refer Note 8)
Stock-in-trade 11,505.25 17,921.98
Finished goods - 3.32
11,505.25 17,925.31
6,420.06 (6,726.45)
Increase in Right of return assets {Refer Note 7) (100.52) (411.11)
6,319.54 (7,137.56)
Employee benefits expense
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus (Including Director's Remuneration) (Refer Note 32) 2,687.43 2,794,71
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 30) 171.34 173.80
Contribution to Employees' State Insurance (Refer Note 30) 22.28 28.24
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 30) 87.10 75.81
Staff welfare expenses 52.55 83.35
3,020.70 3,155.91

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Finance costs

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest Expense:

-On borrowings 2,74 0.66
- On lease liabilities 136.40 e 109.23
139.14 | A0 a7 S, 109.89




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY ﬁlMlTED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2028

25

26

Other Expenses
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Electricity expenses 405.61 350.53
Logistics expenses 1,315.85 1,191.97
Packing materials consumed 242.77 611.35
Rent {Refer Note 313} 136.02 193.68
Repairs and maintenance
Building 9.06 15.38
Others 155.74 166.48
Service charges 3,276.61 2,538.02
Insurance 62.31 A5.43
Rates and taxes 124.45 40.50
Business Promotion Expenses 29.11 2.83
Commission and Brokerage - 29,43
Communication Expenses 8.89 8.35
Legal and Professional Fees 174.25 146.48
Online Charges 11.54 -
Printing and Stationery 78.82 136.32
Travelling and Conveyance 50.26 52.22
Security Service Charges 125.61 193.75
Director Sitting Fees 4,80 4.80
Server hosting, bandwidth and other data service charges 142.40 57.85
Loss sllowance on Advances 52.53 -
Loss allowance recoverable from trade payables 23.96 -
Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment - 8.87
Sundry balances written off - 5.25
Bad debts written off {less adjusted against provision Rs. 38.53 lakhs) 9.41 -
Loss allowance on trade receivables 25755 192.11
Auditors’ Remuneration
As Auditors - -
Audit Fees 45.00 30.00
in other capacity for certificates and other services™ - 0.50
Limited Review® - 4.00
Reimbursement of expenses™ 2,53 0.94
Miscellaneous Expenses 16,18 258.06
6,765.46 6,496.10
*Paid 1o erstwhile auditors
Exceptional ltems
Rs, InLacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
A March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Trade receivable balance written off {Refer Note 26.1} - {161.40}
- {161.40}

26.1

During the previous year, the Management based on its internal assessment, had detected misappropriation of cash collections from customers
aggregating to INR 161.40 lacs by few employees of the Company during the previous financial year, The Company had referred the matter to the
police department and after filing of the First Information Report {FIR), the aforesald employees were arrested by the police and an investigation
charge sheet was filed with the Additional Chief Judicial Magistrate, Baruipur, West Bengal by the police.

The Company had expensed the aforesaid amount during the previous year under the heading “exceptional item”,
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Notes to financial statements-as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 Rs. In lacs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

27 Taxexpenses
{a} Income tax in the statement of profitand loss:

Curvent tax
Income tax charge for theyear 1,088.80 -
108880 -
Deferred tax
Deferred tax chargef{credit) for the year ’ {487.04} 52.44
: {487.04) 52,44
Income tax in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax credit for the year {697} -
{b} Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year:
Profit before tax 5,067.52 {£,623.11)
Enacted tax rates {36} 25.17% 25.97%
Income tax expense calculated at corporate tax rate 1,275.50 {408.53)
Impact of adjustment of brought forward lossesfunabsorbed depreciation {312.57} 44857
mpact of fower tax rate on certain items {61.11) (114}
impact of recopnition of deferred tax assets {151.58) -
tmipact of reassessment of holding period of 0.01% Non Curmulative Compuisory Convertible Preference shares {164.13) -
Other adjustmenits 15.65 13.55
Total income tax expense as per the statement of profit and loss 601,76 52,44
{e}  Deferred tax Habilitles {Net)
Particulars AsatMarch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Deferred tax Hiabilities:
On tax impact on fair valuation of £.01% Nor: Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares 2,83471 3,419.37
On tax impact on fair valuation of mutual funds 459.62 3.24
3,284.33 3,422.61
Deferred tax assets:
On tax impact on temporaty differences in depreciable assets 10.06 34.22
On tax impact o temporaty differences on Right of use assets and fiabilities 20.03 8,05
Ontax impact on provision for expected sales return 12.88 - 30e7
On tax impact ot provisions made 227.81 150.29
O tax impact on discounting of security deposit Rkl 14.83
On tax impact of carried forward fosses - 2,962.49
On tax impact on expenses allowed on payment basis &4.08 -
- 35188 3,176.85
Less; Deferred tax assets not recognised™ - {3,176.85)
351.98 -
Net Deferred tax liabilities 2,042.34 3,422.61
{8} Taxlosses carred forward
Particulars . Asat March31, 2024 Expiry period As at March 31, 2023 Expiry period
Expire - - 11,380.69 2024-2031
Never expire - - 38823 -
- . 11,769.92

{e} The Company has written back additional provision of INR 2,405.27 Jacs in the books of acoount In respect of previous financial year based on the order under section 143
tax Act, 1961,
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28. Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity.
shares into Equity shares.

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars For the year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit /{Loss) attributable to equity holders of the company 6,871.03 {1,675.55)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares 2,37,03,524 2,37,03,524
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 28.99 (7.07)

29. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies, Management has made-the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options ~ Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That s, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination, After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 30

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not|
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changés in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 and 35 for further disclosures.

Right of return

The Company updates its assessment of expected returns based on the best estimates and Jjudgements and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected returns
are sensitive to changes in circumstances and judgements and the Company's past experience regarding returns may not be representative of customers' actual returns in future.
Changes in estimates and judgements about the above factors could affect the reported amounts of right of return asset and corresponding refund liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

30. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident fund and Employee State Insurance
Scheme, which is a defined contribution plan. The company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as they accrue.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined employee benefit plan in the form of gratuity. Every employee, who has completed five years or more of services, is entitled to gratuity on terms not less
favourable than the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Liability as on the balance sheet date is provided based on actuarial valuation done by a certified actuary using
project unit credit method. The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or termination of employment being an amount based on the
respective employee's last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The defined benefit,
plan expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet|

for the respective plans:

Net employee benefits expense recognized in the employee cost.

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income {OC))

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs in lacs __Rsin lacs
Current service cost 67.87 69.13
Past Service Cost - Vested - (6.58)
Interest cost on the net defined benefit liability 19.23 13.26
Benefit Cost (Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit & loss) 87.10 75.81

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Actuarial {gains) / Losses arising from
- demographic assumptions 0.61 -
- financial assumptions 14.98 80.00
- experience adjustments (42.34) (45.55)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense (0.14) 0.05
Net expense recognised for the period in OCI (26.89) 34.50
Balance Sheet
Benefit asset / liability
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Present value of defined benefit obligation 329.09 297.13
Fair value of plan assets ~ 8.15 7.49
Net fiability 320.94 289.64
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Opening defined benefit obligation 297.13 192.20
Current service cost 67.87 69.13
Interest cost 19.75 13.77
Plan Amendments: Vested portion at the end of the period - (6.58)
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from
- Changes in demographic assumptions 0.61 -
- Changes in financial assumptions 14.98 80.00
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (42.34) (45.55)
Benefits paid (28.91) (5.84)
Closing defined benefit obligation 329.09 297.13
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in Jacs Rs in lacs
Opening fair value of plan assets 749 7.03
Expected return / Investment income 0.52 0.51
Employers contribution 2891 5.84
Benefits paid (28.91) (5.84)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 0.14 {0.05)
Closing fair value of plan assets 8.15 7,49
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The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% %
Investments with Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%

The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the company’s plan are as follows

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on assets
Future salary increases

Mortality Rate

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognized as expense are as under :

6.98% 7.27%
6.98% 7.27%
8.00% 8.00%
1AM 2012-2015 IALM 2012-2014
Ultimate Ultimate

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Contribution to Provident and other fund 171.34 173.80
Contribution to Employees State Insurance 22.28 28.24
Assumptions sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Assumptions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sensitivity Level Rs in lacs Rs in lacs

Discount Rate

Change in defined benefit obligation

Increase by 0.5% (25,25) (22.65)
Decrease 0.5% 28.21 26.01
Salary Growth Rate
Increase by 0.5% 26.31 24,73
Decrease 0.5% (24,14) (21.68)
Expected payment for future years
Expected payments to be made March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 21.02 19.83
Between 2 and 5 years 16.43 16.97
Between 5 and 10 years 94.47 93.92
Beyond 10 years 1,169.39 1,156.14
Total expected payments 1,301.31 1,286.86

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the government bond yield as at the bal

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the ave
obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered taking into account the inflation, seniority,

The Company expects to contribute Rs 21.02 lacs to the fund in the next financial
(March 31, 2023 is 19 years).

year. The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024 is 18 years

ance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
rage long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the

promotion and other relevant factors.
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

31.Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements
31.a. Lease
Company as a lessee

The carrying amounts of right of use assets are detailed in note 3C.

The Company has entered into lease transactions for office and warehouse premises etc. These lease agreements are for period of upto 9 years with an option to renew the lease.

Below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year: Rs. In tacs

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 1,168.30 191.03
Additions 394.04 1,105.03
Accretion of interest 136.40 109.23
Payments (328.57) (236.99)
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements (455.16) -
Closing balance 915.01 1,168.30
Current 199.14 155.67
Non-current 715.87 1,012.63
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 36.3.
The effective interest rate for amortisation of lease liabilities has been considered within the range of 10.50% to 11.20%.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: Rs. In Lacs

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 276.24 207.50
Interest expense on lease liabilities 136.40 109.23
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 136.02 193.68
Gain on lease modification (included in other income) (61.21) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 487.45 510.41
The company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs 328.57 lacs in March 31, 2024 (Rs 236.99 lacs in March 341, 2023).
31.b. Commitments
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advance) and not provided for - 191.30
Total - 191.30
31.c. Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs

West Bengal Tax on Entry of Goods into Local Areas Act, 2012 0.89 0.89
Total 0.89 0.89
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

31.d. Fixed Deposits with banks aggregating to Rs. 400.00 lacs {(March 31, 2023: Rs. 250.00 lacs) are pledged as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs in lacs Rs in lacs
HDFC Bank Limited (As security against Overdraft facilities) 400.00 250.00

Total 400.00 250.00

31.e. Sastasundar Ventures Limited (Holding Company) has provided Corporate guarantee amounting Rs. 25.00 lacs against credit card facility availed from HDFC Bank Limited by the
Company. The amount of facility / guarantee actually availed by the company as at balance sheet date amounts to Rs. 0.17 Lacs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.49 Lacs).

32. Related parties transactions
32.a Name of related parties and description of relationship
i) Related parties where control exists
a) Holding Company
Sastasundar Ventures Limited

ii) Name of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a) Subsidiary Companies

Retailer Shakti Supply Chain Private Limited

Happymate Foods Limited

Genu Path Labs Limited

Flipkart Health Limited (Formerly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited) (Upto December 08, 2021)

b) Fellow Subsidiary Companies/Limited Liability Partnership
Innogrow Technologies Limited

Microsec Resources Private Limited

Dreamscape Advisors LLP

¢} Enterprise exercising significant influence directly/indirectly over the Company
Mitsubishi Corporation India Private Limited (subsidiary of Mitsubishi Corporation , Japan)

d) Associate
Flipkart Health Limited (Formerly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited)

e) Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Banwari Lal Mittal, Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Ravi Kant Sharma, Managing Director & CEQ

Mr. Ramesh Sharma, Whole-time director

Mr. Parimal Kumar Chattaraj, Independent Director

Ms. Rupanjana Dey, Independent Director

Mr. Dinkar Bagaria, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. September 27, 2022)
Mr, Abhishek Singhi, Chief Financial Officer (upto September 27, 2022)
Mr. Abhishek Mishra, Company Secretary {w.e.f. November 14, 2022)
Mr. Arnab Chakraborty, Company Secretary {upto October 07, 2022)
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

32. b. Related party transactions and balances: Rs. In Lacs
SkNo Related Parties Nature of Transactions Transactions (Payable)/Receivable
Year ended March | Year ended March March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
31, 2024 31, 2023
Holding Company
1 |[Sastasundar Ventures Limited |Corp0rate guarantee taken 0.17 0.49 - | -
Subsidiary Companies
. Amount paid towards Service Charges - 32.00 ~
2 |Happymate Foods Limited Advance to Suppliers - 300 3.90
3 |Retailer Shakti Supply Chain Private Limited Sale of stock-in-trade 38,659.61 17,823.17 349.10 (23.95)
Purchase of PPE/CWIP 2.30 - ) )
Other Reimbursement 0.10 | 1.70
Investment in Equity Share Capital 10,500.00 1,500.00 - -
4 |Genu Path Labs Limited Investment in Equity Share Capital 1,100.00 300.00 - -
Loan Given 50.00 - - -
Loan recovered {including interest) 50.42 - - -
Interest Income 0.42 - - -
Sale of stock-in-trade - 0.22 - -
Other Income & Reimbursement 0.04 0.23 - -
Associate )
5 |Flipkart Health Limited (Formerly known as Loan refunded {including interest) - 205.23 - -
Sastasundar Marketplace Limited) [Refer note 1 Interest Income - 1.81
below) Sale of services {Professional fees) - 264,02 - 8.75
Other Reimbursement - 0.22 - -
Fellow Subsidiary Companies / Limited Liability Partnership
6 |Innogrow Technologies Limited Payment towards rent 118.75 72.08 - -
Amount paid towards electricity charges 26.59 23.81 - (2.37)
Sale of PPE/CWIP - 14.55
8 |Dreamscape Advisors LLP Amount paid towards other expense - 1.24 - -
Enterprise exercising significant influence over the Company
9 [Mitsubishi Corporation India Private Limited |Professional fee expenses 50.00 50.00 (4.50)| {4.50)
Key Managerial Personnel
10 |Mr. Banwari Lal Mittal Director's Remuneration 144.49 144.59 (17.02) {17.12)
11 [Mr. Ravi Kant Sharma Director's Remuneration 144.49 144.59 {17.02) (17.12)
12 [Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma Director's Remuneration 39.79 34.94 {3.19) {3.72)
13 |Mr. Parimal Kumar Chattaraj Sitting Fees 2.40 2.40 - -
14 |Ms. Rupanjana Dey Sitting Fees 2.40 2.40 - -
Repayment of loan given {including interest) 1.50
15 | Mr. Abhishek Singhi Loan Written off - 5.81 . )
Interest Income - 0.47
Remuneration - 16.75 - -
16 |Mr. Dinkar Bagaria Remuneration 55.77 16.82 {3.97) (3.31)
17 IMr. Abhishek Mishra Remuneration 15,73 4.87 (1.47) (1,21)
18 {Mr. Arnab Chakraborty Remuneration - 11,51 - -
Notes:

1. Sastasundar Ventures Limited (Holding Company) has provided Corporate guarantee amounting Rs. 25.00 lacs against credit card facility availed from HDFC Bank Limited by the Company. The
amount of facility / guarantee actually availed by the company as at balance sheet date amounts to Rs. 0.17 Lacs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.49 Lacs).

2, Transactions stated above are excluding applicable taxes.

3. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs
in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except as disclosed above.
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33, Segment reporfing
The Company operates in anly one business segment L.e. trading of Healthcare and FMEG products and in only one geographic segment i.e, India. Accordingly there are no separate‘

|reportable segments under Ind AS - 108 - Operating Segments. Sale of goods to-two customers amounts to Rs 66,180.72 facs {Rs 37,388.05 lacs in year ended March 31, 2023} which is
49,57% {36,53% irvyear ended March 31, 2023} of the total sale of products during the year ended 31 March 2024,

34. Fair vaiues
Set out below, Is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company financial instruments, other than thosa with carrying amounis that are reasonable]

approximations of fair values:

) . . . 8s. In Lacs
Particulars Carrying Value as at Fair Value as at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
{i} Financial Assets
a} Measured at Fair Valye through Profit & Loss {FVTPL)
Investment in Quoted mutual funds 16,396.98 3,381.39 16,396.88 3,381.39
Investment in Unquoted Alternate Investment Funds 5323.11 - 5,323.11 -
Investment in Unquoted Bonus 6.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible 11,780.00 13,900.00 11,780.00 13,500.00
Preference share
b} Mteasured at Amortized Cost
1} Investments 2,558.60 295202 2,555.60 2,952.02
{it] Trade receivables 345201 3,178.73 345201 3,178.73
{ili) Cash and cash equivalents 2,358.36 2,860.24 2,358.38 2.860.24
{iv) Other bank halances 1,527.88 16,339.71 1,527.86 16,335.7%
fv} Other financiat assats ’ 7,343.53 10,273.78 7,343.33 10,273.78
Total Financial assets 50,741.35 52,885.87 50.741.35 52.885.87
{i%} Financiat Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortized Cost
{1} Trade Payables 2,880.71 4,480.45 2,880.71 4,480.45
(it} Lease Hiabilities 915,01 1,168.30 515,01 1,168.30
{iif} Other financial lizhilities 2,117.30 1,400.15 : 2,117.30 1,460.15
Total Financial liabilities , 5o13.02] 7.048.90 5,013.02 7,048.90
The mansgament assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade recelvables, trade payables and other financial liabilities and assets approximate theif carrying)
lamounts largely due to the shert-term maturities of these instruments,
34.1. Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction In the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions {l.e., an exit price}, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values}

have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as explained in Note 35.1. T
ey e,
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

35. Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities
1. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 Is as follows:

iAssets . o _Bs. In lacs]
Particulars Fair Value through Profit & Loss Accounts .

Carrying Value Fair Value tevel- 1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
investment in Quoted mutual funds 16,396,898 16,356.88 _ 16,395.88 X R 15,396.88
Investment in Unquoted Alternate 532341 : 532311 533341 5323.41

Investment Funds
investment in Unquoted Bonus

0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsory

Convertible Preference shara 11,780.00 11,780.00 - - 11,780.00 - 11,780.00
Total 33,499.89 . 33,499.§9 - 21,719.99 7 ﬁ;’lSO.(‘%D 33,4&9.99
il. The carrving amount and fair value mieasurement hierarchy for assets and fabilities as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Assets . . Rs. in lacsk
Particulars . Fair Value through Profit & Loss Accounts ]

Carrying Value Eair Value level-1 | Level-2 tevel-3 Total
{nvestment in Quoted mutual funds 3,381.39 3,381.39 ; 3,381.39 - 3,38139
{nvestment in Unquoted Bonus
0.01%6 Non-Cumulative Compulsory 13.500.00 13 00 .
Convertible Preference share e ,900. - - 13,900.00 13,500.60
Total 17,281.39 7 7 17,281.39 - 3,381.39 B,Mﬁﬂ 17,281.39

35.1 Valuation technique used
£quity instruments which are actively traded on pubiic stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis are classified as Level 1.

Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value {NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments are generally Level 2.
Instruments in non-listed entities are initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured {to the extent information is avallable) and valued on a case-by-case are classified as Level]

3.

Lewe! 2 Hierarchy:
Investment in Quoted mutual funds
Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value {NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions.

Investment in Alternate Investment funds
Units held In funds are measured based on thelr published net asset value {NAV], taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions.

Level 3 Hierarchy:

investment in Unguoted Bonus 0.01% Non-Cumulative compulsory Convertible Preference share {("Bonus CCPS™)
The Company has comgputed the value of Bonus CCPS by discounting the cash flows L.e,, using Discounted Cash Flow Method, The valuation requires management to use unobservable
inputs in the model, of which thi significant unobservabie inputs are disclosed in the tables befow. Management regularly assesses reasonably possible alternatives for those signiﬁcam’

unobservable inputs and determines thelr impact on the total fair value, Also refer note 41.
There have been no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 durlng the period ended March 31, 2024 and during the year ended March 31, 2023,

|Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:
The: significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a guantitative sensitivity analysis as at March

34, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as shown below:

Valuation Significant tnter refationship between significant
Particulars Technique unobservable inputs | snobservable inputs and fair value measurement
Bonus (.01% Non-Cunulative Compulsory Convertible Preference share {Bonus CLPS) Discounted Cash Discount The estimated fair value would increase / {dacrease)]
Flow Method Rate if the discount rate were lower / {higher}
B
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operation. The Company’s financial
assets include investments, trade & other receivables and cash & cash equivalents. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company'’s financial risk management framework and developing and monitoring the Company’s financial
risk management policies. The Company’s financial risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate
controls,

36.1. Market Risk .

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three type of risk i.e.
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include investments, trade payable,
trade receivables etc. Currency risk is not applicable to the Company it is not involved in substantial foreign currency transactions.

36.1.1. Price Risk

The Company’s investment in mutual funds and alternative insvestments fund are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment. The
Company manages such risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total instruments. Reports on the portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior
management on a regular basis. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all investment decisions.

Price sensitivity analysis
Following table provides the sensitivity impact to a 1% appreciation/decline in NAV of mutual fund and alternate investment fund investments as at the Balance Sheet date

Rs. In Lacs
particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Gain / (Loss) Gajn / (Loss)
NAV of mutual funds and alternate investment fund appreciates by 1% 217.20 33.81
NAV of mutual funds and alternate investment fund declines by 1% (217.20} (33.81)

36.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables,
bank balances, loans, investments and other financial assets. At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the Company operates.

Customner credit risk is managed by the Company'’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored and credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Credit risk arising from investments, financial
instruments and balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit worthiness.

Rs. In Lacs
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance ) Trade receivable
As at April 1, 2022 42,17
Add : Loss Allowance 192.11
Less: Loss Allowance adjusted Bad Debts written off -
As at March 31, 2023 234.28
Add : Loss Allowance 257.65
Less: Loss Allowance adjusted Bad Debts written off 38.53
As at March 31, 2024 453.40

36.3. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors].
rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in
which the entity operates. P
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2024

Maturities of Financial Liabilities :
The table below analyses the Company's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their undiscounted contractual maturities :

As at March 31, 2024 Rs. In Lacs
Less than 1 Year Between 1-2 Between 2 - 3 Years More than 3 years Total
Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 2,880.71 - - - 2,880.71
Lease Liabilities 285.91 287.19 261.22 289.94 1,124.26
Other Financial Liabilities 2,117.30 - . - - 2,117.30
As at March 31, 2023 ) Rs. In Lacs
Less than 1 Year Between 1-2 Between 2 - 3 Years More than 3 years Total
Years
Financial Liabilities .
Trade Payables 4,480.45 - - - 4,480.45
Lease Liabilities 268.83 282.27 296.39 686.92 1,534.41
Other Financial Liabilities ’ 1,400.15 - - - 1,400.15

37. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital (total equity) includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

38. During the previous year, the Company had elected to apply tax rates permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the Company has considered new
tax rates for deferred tax determination and disclosure purposes. ﬁjﬁf’fﬁﬁf@x
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

39, Ratio Analysis and its elements

-SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Sr No, Ratios Numerator Denominator March 81, 2024 March 31, 2023 Variance (%) Reason for Variance greater than 25%
On account of write back of additional tax|
1 {Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 9.22 7.20 28% provision coupled with decrease in liabilities
and increase in current investments
27 |Debt- Equity Ratio Debt (Borrowing + Lease liabilities) | Total Equity 0.01 0.02 -28% On.account of decrease in lease liabilities the
ratio has decreased.
Earnings for Debt Service (Profit for
the period/year + Finance cost +
Depreciation - Profit on sale of
property, plant and equipment-
Liabilities/provisions no longer
required written back+Provision for | Debt Service {Interest On account of profits earned during the year
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio doubtful debts & advances+Bad & Lease Payments + 6.49 (7.74) 184% as against loss in the previous year
debts/advances written off)- Principal Re-payments)
Exceptional item-Fair value gain on
financials instrument at FVTPL-
Profit on sale of current
investments+Loss on sale of fixed
assets
4 |Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period Ave.rage Shareholder’s 0.09 (0.02) 548% On actfount of .profits ear'ned during the year|
Equity as against loss in the previous year
On account of better inventory management
5 |lnventory Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average Inventory 9.03 7.01 29% and higher sales during the year, the
turnover ratio was higher
6 [Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio {Revenue from operations Aver?ge Trade 40.27 40.08 0%
Receivables
Purchases during the year of raw
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio materials and and stock' intrade + |Average Trade 33.47 33.10 1%
Other Expenses {excluding non Payables
cash provisions}
The revenue from operation has been
8 [Net Capital Turnover Revenue from operations Working Capital * 2.87 1.81 58% increased in current year in comparison to
previous year leading to a higher ratio.
o |Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year Revenl.Je from 0.05 (0.02) 357% On act:‘ount of .profits earned during the year,
operations as against loss fn the previous year
. On account of profits earned during the year|
éiZ:ZIIeESe’atlwzgtlg . as against loss in the previous year
10 [Return on Capital employed Earmpgs before mter.est and taxes Total Debt (Borrowing 0.06 (0.02} 421% ’
{Profit Before Tax + Finance Cost} o
+ Lease liabilities) +
Deferred Tax Liability }
Interest Income on fixed deposits, The increase is on account of investment in
bonds and debentures + Profit on .Average (Current debentures and mutual funds yielding higher|
11 [Return on Investment sale of investments + Profit on fair investments + Non 0.09 0.04 118% returns during the year

valuation of investments carried at
FVTPL + Fair value on Bonus CCPS

current Investments +
Other bank balances})

* Working capital has been calculated as current assets minus current liabilities,
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Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

40

41

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21st March, 2024 approved a Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme) for amalgamation of Retailer Shakti Supply Chain Private
Limited ("Transferor Company") With Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (“Transferee Company”) under Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made there under, with effect from 1st April, 2023 ("the Appointed Date"). The Scheme is subject to requisite approvals of the concerned regulatory
authorities. Pending such approvals, the scheme has not been recognised in these financial statements.

The Company has received 99,873 number of 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) from its associate (erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary) in
the earlier financial year. The Company has entered into a Put Call Option Agreement on 19 November 2021 with its associate and the purchaser (‘the investor’) {the Holding
Company of the associate) whereby it agreed to sell 75.1% of the aforesaid CCPS {‘milestone shares’) to the investor at a specified consideration on achievement of certain
milestones on or before the milestone event target dates by the Company.

The put call option agreement was subsequently amended on 3 March 2022 and 17 April 2023, As per the last amendment, the Company agreed to transfer 12,612 CCPS to the
investor for an agreed consideration, against which Rs. 1,669.23 lacs was received in May 2023, and 4,182 CCPS to be converted into equity shares of the associate as per the
conversion ratio defined in the agreement, post achievement of the specified milestones. With respect to the remaining CCPS, it was decided that the Company, the associate and
the investor will mutually discuss and agree in writing the terms and.conditions of the remaining milestone events, milestone shares and milestone consideration. The maximum
overall consideration payable for all milestones has been specified by the amendment agreement dated 17 April 2023 which is in line with the amended Put Call Option
Agreement dated 3 March 2022.

The management, based on its internal assessment and best estimate of aggregate adjusted milestone consideration, has derived the fair value of the investment for the aforesaid
CCPS by engaging an independent registered valuer. /f‘ﬁj, Sn
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

42. Other statutory information:

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

the Company shall whether,

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

<

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami

i. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency transactions / balances during the current and previous financial year.

iv. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”} with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
party identified by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received an

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any|

that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in

y fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax|

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Vil

financial year.

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies

Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the

In terms of our report attached on the even date

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

B .
W
Ritesh Rathi

Partner
Membership No. 069207

For and on behalf of the Board of
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
[CIN: U15411WB2011PLC160195]

Jf
B. L. Mittal
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 00365809

Dinban @ﬂa&u\)}w
Dinkar Bagaria
Chief Financial Officer

Directors of

RiesShone

Ravi Kant Sharma
Managing Director & CEO
DIN : 00364066

by~ |
A@tishek‘ ishra

RN, Company Secretary

£ B

R
/ ARALT “!@Z\frxs' Membership No. A40011
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata % f %% \
B
Date : May 30, 2024 Date : May 30, 2024 { g | W@@i@&‘?ﬁ‘g;ﬁ |
3 s % . l{'.
=t

i

N4

e T
R

=7

Harn g




